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Situated against the bluff near the Missouri River, the Cornelius 
0'Connor house is a local interpretation of the Italianate style of 
architecture. Designed and built ca. 1875 by O'Connor himself, this 
two story brick house has decorative features including bracketing along 
the cornice, brick window hoods with keystones and brick quoins at the 
corners. Two matching frame scroll saw work porches shelter the north 
(front) doors of the house.

Typical of much Italianate architecture, the main body of the house is 
ell-shaped in plan. There is a rectangular brick addition on the rear of 
the structure which may have been built at the same time as the main 
house. The plan of the first floor is that of a central hall with front and 
backparlors on the east side and dining room on the west. The kitchen 
and 2 other small rooms are housed in the rear addition.

The interior of the structure features walnut woodwork handcarved by 
Captain O'Connor. This first floor boasts of panelled wainscotting in the 
entryhall and dining room. The doors and wainscott panels have a marble- 
ized grain. A special dining room feature is the built-in sideboard on 
the east wall. A small pantry located between the kitchen and dining rooms 
has a window to allow for efficient food serving. Other first floor rooms 
include front and back parlors, the former containing a black marble fire­ 
place purportedly imported from Italy. A picture rail also lines this room 
and a bay window adds interest to the back parlor. These two rooms are 
separated by a wide semi-elliptical archway with sliding doors.

The carved staircase^lined with wainscotting, rises to second floor 
to''4he ! sblitli from the en'tfy hall. : The newel post contains a hidden panel 
which..give.s way..to a^.secret compartment. Near the top .of,.the staircase 
is a recessed J niche where s the°0'Connor family kept a religious'statue. 
At.this point the stairway carves east as does the wall. , . ...

' 'There are eight bedrooms on second floor. Two of these'being at the 
rear of the house in the addition housed servants, who had^ea§y access to 
the'ki^chen by way of a back stairway. .:, < 

The house, now being restored by the Dakota County Historical Society, 
is in excellent condition. The most serious problem they encountered was 
the rebuilding of the ornate porches to replace the originals, which had 
nearly rotted away. This reconstruction was accomplished through the use 
of old photographs and the talent of a local carpenter. There is a minor 
modern intrusion on the interior. The society has installed a baseboard 
heating system which is visible in places, but color-wise blends with 
the rooms. Outside the house a tall chainlink fence has been installed to 
discourage vandals.
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Cornelius O'Connor, an Irish immigrant, came to America with his 
parents in 1829 at the age of eight years. The family lived in Boston for 
twenty years, after which Cornelius went to New York where he married 
Catharine Duggan in 1852. In 1857 he and his wife moved west settling in 
a year old Catholic colony in St. John's Precinct, Dakota County, Nebraska.

O'Connor had been a carpenter while living in the east, but followed 
agricultural pursuits after his settlement in Nebraska. By 1882, he owned 
1,300 acres of land with about 240 acres in cultivation, and wintered 200 
head of cattle, 100 hogs and 20 horses.

O'Connor was also politically and militarily active, representing 
Dakota County in both the 8th and llth sessions of the Territorial Legislature, 
He was instrumental in establishing the first school in Dakota County, the 
0'Conner School, and served as its director for over twenty years. In 1857, 
Governor Richardson commissioned O'Connor as Captain of a company formed 
to suppress Indian troubles. During the Indian war of 1864, he led 
Company I of the Second Nebraska Calvary' through the fighting in Northern 
Dakota Territory.

"Architecturally, the house is quite"distinct.. 'Since it was'a product 
of Captain 0'Connor's talents, it has a special character particularly 
noticable in .the interior. A curvilinear aspect dominates the interior 
details, while the dark walnut woodwork adds a special, almost heavy quality 
to the atmosphere. This is very different from the character of the exterior 
which is generally light and rectilinear. The O'Connor house is an except­ 
ional example of rural Italianate architecture designed and constructed by 
a talented immigrant carpenter.
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